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To the Members of PNC Bithur Kanpur Highways Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS Financial Statements of PNC Bithur Kanpur Highways Private
Limited (the "company”], which comprises of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the
statement of Profit and Loss Including statement of Other Comprehensive Income, and
statement of cash flows and Statement of changes in Equity for the vear then ended, and
summary of significant accounting pelicies and other explanatory information,

In gur opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforezaid Financlal Statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2025, and the statement of Profit and Loss including Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income , and Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specifiad under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for The Awdit of Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our ather
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinian.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the Director's report but dees not include the Financial State T
and our auditor’s report thereon. el
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Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereen.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibility of Management for Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors |s responsible for the matters stated in section of
134(5) of the companies’ act, 2013 with respect to the preparation of these Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financlal position, financial performance,
changes In equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act, This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimatas that are reasonable and prudent; and deslgn, Implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assesszing the
company's ability to continue as going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do s50.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial
reporting prooess,

Auditor's Responsibilities for Audit of Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that Includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but Is not 3 guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Shs will always
detect a material misstaternent when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered materal If, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasanably be
expecied to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Fimancial
Statements.




We give in "Annexure A" a detalied description of Auditor's responsibilities for Audit of the
Financial Statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies {Acditor's Report) Order, 2020{"the crder”}issued by the
central Government of India in terms of the sub section (11) of the section 143 of the
act, we give in the Annexure B, a statement on the matters specified In paragraph 3 and
4 of the order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3] of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained 2l the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as It appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss including statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, and statement of cash flows and Statement of
changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information dealt
with in this report are in agreement with the books of accounts.

In our apinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with of the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

On the basls of the written representations recelved from the directors as on
March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in Annexure C.

With respect to the other matters to be Included in Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Ind AS financial statements , if any.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts Including derivative contracts
far which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

This clause is omitted.




wil.

1) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and

2]

3]

belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested | either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any
other person(s] or entity(ies], including foreign entities{"Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company(“ultimate beneficiary™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries;

The Management has reprezented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds have been
received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities{"Funding Parties”) with the understanding, whether recorded in
wrriting or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company|"ultimate beneficiary”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances; nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub clause (1) and (2)
contain any material mis-statement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

As per Information and explanations ghven and based on our examination, which
include test checks ;the company has used accounting software for maintaining its
books of account which has a feature of recording auwdit trial (edit log) Facility and
the same has operated throughout the vear for all the transactions recorded in the
software Further during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of audit trial feature being tampered with ,and the audit trial has been
preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For RMIA B Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: D0097BN/N500062

(Lt e il

CA Rahul Vashisht

Partner %

M.No.097881
Date: 19-05-2025
Place of Signature: Agra



ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PNC BITHUR KANPUR HIGHWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financlal Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Aoditing (SA4s) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the awdit, We also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud -or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
hasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting @ material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
Internal control.

Obtain an understanding of intermal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting poficies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists relatad to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention In our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadeqguate,
to modify our opinkon. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease o continue as a going concem,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matiers, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal contral that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

For AMA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0009 78N,/N500062

(Patiuld

€A Rahul VashishtA )
Partner

M.No.097881

Date: 19-05-2025

Place of Signature: Agra




"ANNEXURE C" to the independent auditor's report of even date on the financial
statements of PNC Bithur Kanpur Highways Private Limited for the Year Ended March 31,
2025,

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (1] of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ["the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of PNC BITHUR
KANPUR HIGHWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of
the Fimancial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls.

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on these responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financlal controls that were operating effectively
far ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of refiable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Intermal Financial Controls Owver Financial Reporting [the
“Guidance Mote") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Mote require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Dur audit involves performing procadures to abtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and aperating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or errar,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficent and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is & process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the refiability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the compamy;

2] provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and,

{3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controfs,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financlal reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reparting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Compamy has, in 81l material respects, an adequate fntemal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025,

For RMA & Associates LLP
(Chartered Accountants)
FRN: 0D0978N/N500062

(Bl sl

CA Rahul Vashishth

Partner
M.No.OSTERL
Date: 19-05-2025%

Place of Signature: Agra
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PHC Bithur Kanpur Highways Private Limited

CIN LM5201UP202 PTC129528
Balance Sheet a5 at Marnch 31, 2025
i¥ i lakhs)
As & s at
ParSen MOLES | tarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
[1] Mon - Current Assets
{a] Fnancial Assets
i} Service Concession Receivable z 69,239.70 T7.956.78
(k] Othier Mon - Current Agsets 3 4,687 48 10,407 .94
Sub Total (Non-Current .l.'luu-l 73927.18 BE 404 72
{2}  Cusrent Assets
[a) Finarcial Assets
fij  Trade Recalvabies 4 1,103.35 2,568.22
() Ivestments 5 2,097.38 200193
(il Cash and Cash EqLIII.rJIEﬂE B BA1X 36 1,140.05
[k} Other Bank Balencs &1 1,850.00 1.650.00
(¥} Other Fnancial Assets 7T 170,92 46.92
[b] Other Current Assets B 395574 57780
Sub Totad [Current Azsets) 18 A58 65 7,884.81
Total Assets 92,825.83 96,389.63
(ECLLUITY AMD LIABILITIES
EQUITY
{8) Equity Share Capital 9 8,885.00 5.889.00
{b) Dther Equity 10 #3135 557,13 |
Sub Totad [Equity) 10,720.38 10,445,13
LIABILITIES
{tt} Mon - Corrent Liabilises
1a) Financial Liatiiities
[il  Borrowings i1 74,781.18 759,101.99
(b}  Provisions 12 12.59 1.81
Sub Total {Man Current Liability) 74,B03.77 74,104,590
ji2}  Current Liabdities
{a) Firancial Liabliities
[i] Borrowings 13 d, 340,00 4,185.00
[§] Trade Payabies 14 510.39 1,520.22
[@} Other Financial Lisbilities 15 244368 1,049.04
{b) Orher Current Lisbilithss 16 8% 8354
fc}  Prowisions 17 L 0.81
Sub Total [Current Lixbility) 7. 30068 6 838,60
Total Equity & Liabilities 92,825.83 96.,3889.63

Summary of Material Accounting Pelickes infermation
The accompanying notes from an integral part of the thess financial statements
I terms of our report of even date attached

Far AMA & Assoclates LLP | Bawat
Chartered Accountants . Managing Director
FRMN-O0097EN NS00062 __" DiN: 32931309

Giht h&ffﬁﬂﬁ

.l'
CA Rahul Vashishtha \‘:ﬂ: Al
Partrer i po
M.No.-097881
Date-19.05.2025

Place- Agra

For and On Behalf of the Board of Directors
PME Bithur Kanpur Highways Private Limited

§

Pa thl

Director
DiN: 05158586

Ab bR

Abhishek Agarwal

Company Secretary & Chief Financial Dfficer

BLNO-R2IF2




PNC Bithur Kanpur Highways Private Limited
Cif UASZ0IUP2020PTCL295 28
Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended March 31, 2035

{T in lakhs)
Year anded Year endead
S Mistay March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
I |Revenue from Operations i3 10,037,453 31,063. 20
il [&her ncoma 19 500.73 204,512
i Total Incame | 11 ) 10,538,271 31,257.72
1Y |[Exponses:
EEmp*rm.'ee benafit expense 20 183,26 24,77
Fisane Cot 31 553181 E4B7.T1
Other Expenses 22 £.010.44 23, 76684
Total Expenses [IV) &,725.51 30,279.32
Y |Profitf[Losc) before tax [10-1V] 1,812.69 Q8R40
Wi |Exceptional leme - -
Wil Profitd[Loss) before tax [W-51) 1,811.69 SEE.40
Vill |Tax Expense:
|Currant Tax 152283 B54. 78
Tax of Earlier Years 15.61 5.19
X |Profit & {Loss] for the Period [VI-VIH) 274,25 322.44
£ |Other Comprehensive Incomss
{1} lvems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
(i) Income tax relating 1o above itams - -
¥l [Total Comprehensive Income for the Period [IX+X) 274.25 3122.44
¥l fEarning Per Equity Share of Rs.10 Each
Basic & Diluted (7] 13 0,23 0.33
Summary of Material Accounting Policies Information 1

Thie accomganying notes from an integral part of the these financial statements

In terms of our report of even date attachad

Fas BMA & Azcosiates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FHHMBHHJHMEI

CA Rahul Vashishtha
Partner
PA-Mo.-05TEEL
Date-19.05.2025

Place- Agra

For and On Behalf of the Board of Directors
PNC Bithur Kanpur Highways Private Limited

Pankaj Eu m:wﬂ

Managing Mrector Director
DiN: 02341309 DIN: 05168566

Ab hich tli
Abhishek Agarwal

Company Secretary & Chief Financial Officer
ML.NO-622T2



PNC Brhar Kanpur Highways Private Limited
CIN U45201UPZ0Z0PTCLIS52E
Statement of Cash Flow for the Year ended March 31, 2025

% In lakhs]
Particilsrs Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A, | Cash Flow from Operating Activitics
et Profit fLoas) Before Tax & After Excepiional ltems 27435 GHE.40
Adpustment for
Fimance cost 6.531.E1 B487.71
Profit on Redemtion of Mutuad Fund {335.53) [133.53)
(Gainl/Loss on Fair valuation of Muteal Fund 4,69 (Sa3)
Interest Income income Tax Refund 14,11 (893}
Operating Profit / {Loss) Before Working Capital Changes 6,453.12 7.323.72
Adjustment for Changes In Working Capital
increase/{Decreass} o Trade Payable {1,010.72) {6,224.97)
Increasef(Decreass} m Other Current Liakilities [ual {69.14]
Increaw=/{Decrenza) in Provitiors 1558 372
Increasef{Detrease] o Trade Bacerable 1 464 E7 4,531.19
Incresef[Decreass| in Men Current Financial Asiets B,757.08 [§,155.15]
Increse/[Deorease) in Mon Current Asssls 5, 7TZ0ua5 ara.or
Increaze{Decrease) in Current Adsets [3,377.54) T16.68
Increase/{Decreata) in Other Finsncial Rabilites 1,395.55 [427.55]
Increas=f{Detrease) in Other Bank Balsnce plyeke ] (1,65, (i)
Incress/[Decreaie) in Current Finamstisl Asse1s {13301} [45.52]
Cash Generated fromy[used] from Operating Activities 18,012.34 {4,030, 79)
Direct Tawes Paid £ w}
Cash [used In )/ from Oporating Activities before Extraordinary ltems 1001232 14,591.13
Cash Generated from/[used) from operating activities (A) 15,012.34 {4,5091.13]
B. | Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Mutual Funds {16, 850.00) (8,749 10
Redemption of Mutual Furds 16183.35 9,513.52
Interest of Inoome Tax Refund i4.11 E.03
Net Cash [ used in) / from Investing Activities (8] [E42.50) {227.15]
€. | Cash Flew frem Financing Activities
Subacription of Eguity Shanes by Holding Company 1.630.00
Proceeds fram Unsecured Loan from Halding Company 1,565.00
Froceeds From Term Loans - 855575
Repayment of Tarm Loan [4,16%.61) x
Finance Cost 6,53 1LE1 [B,2E7.71)
Met Cash | used in] / fromFinancing Aetivities {C) (10,657.62) 5,.263.04
Mat Cash Increase In Cagh & Cash squivalents |A+B+C) 7672322 1,044,565
Cash & Cash Equivalents in Beginning of the year L 140,05 8539
Cash & Cash Equivalenis as at the End of the pear BA12.26 1140005

The stesampanying nates form an integral part of the fimancial statemants
In terms of our report of even date attached

For RWA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN-DO0S7EN /MN5000632 4 !

& Rahul Vashishtha N e

Partner H P
. Mo, -9 TEEL

Date-1%9.05. 2035

Place- Agra

Far and On Behalf of the Board of Directors
PHC Bithur Kamnpur Highways Private Limited

Aﬁ\mmlﬁnm%&ﬂ
Mana Diractor

Banaging Director

DM 025100 DiiN; 025941305
Abhishek Agarsal

Company Secretary & Chief Financlal Officer
M.NO-62272



PHC Bithur Kanpur Highways Private Limited
CIN LAS201UPIOZ0PTCL2S528
Statement of Changes in Eguity for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

A, Eguity Share Capital

(¥ in kakhs)
Asat As at
Changes during the
April 1, 2024 : . March 31, 2025
9,889.00 = 988900
(T in lakhs)
B at As at
April 1, 2023 Changes during the year March 31, 2024
B, 250,00 1,630.00 9, 889,00
B. Other Equity
(¥ ini lakhes)
sicul Reserves B Surplus
o s Retsined enrnings Total
Balance as at April 01, 2024 557.13 557.13
Profit for the Year 274,25 27435
Cthar Comprehensive Income fior the Year - =
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 27425 274,25
Balance as at March 31, 2025 B31.38 B3L.33
{% in lakhs)
Reserves & Surplus
it Retained eamings Total
Balance as at April 01, 2023 234.69 234,69
Profit fior the year J42.44 3iia4
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year . =
Total comprehenshe income for the Year 312.44 322.44
Balance as at March 31, 2014 557.13 557.13
The sccempanying notes from an integral part of the these financlal stabements
in terms of owr report of aven date attached For and On Behalf of the Boand of Directors

PMC Bithur Kanpur Highways Private Limited

r.

For RiA B Associates LLP %/\

Chartered Acoountants Ash i Rawat Pankaj ar raval
Directar

FRN-(TEN/NS00062 2 Managing rector

Cﬁ? { L[J £ ﬂ_ E | DiN: 02941309 DiN: 05168566
CA Rahul Vashishtha . A A, &
Partner : Ak ":‘:.E.
M.No.-D07881 Abhishek Agarwal
Date-19.05.2025 Company Secretary & Chief Financial Officer

Place- Agra M.NO-52272



PNC Bithur Kanpur Highways Private Limited

Cind: U45201UP2020PTC129528

Motes forming part of the Financlal Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2025
Campany information

FNC Bithur Kanpur Highways Private Limived (the company) is domicile and incorporated in indle and is wholly owned subsidiary
carmpany of PNC Infreholdings Limited. The company is engaged in infrastructure development of *Four Lanning from Km 356,000
to Km 414.000, Aligarh to Ksnpur section of NH-91° On Hybrid Annuity model under BharatmalaParivojna in the State of
Karnaizka

1. Bagis of Preparation

The financial statements have been preparaed (o comply in all material aspects with Indian acoounting standards {Ind A%) notified
under sec 133 of the companies act 2013 [the Act) read with Companies (Indian accounting standard) Rules, 2015 and other
relewant provision of the Act snd rules framed thereunder,

The Financial statements have been prepared on a hstorical cost basis except for certain financial assets & Lisbilities measured at
fair value.

The financial statements are presented In Indian rupees (INR) with value rounded off to the nearest lakhs with two decimals,
thereof, acceptotherwise indicated.

2. Slgnificant Accounting Policies Adopted by Company in Preparation of Financial Statements

2.1 Property, Plant and Egulpmant

Subseguent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost net of sccumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost incddudes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing
costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met, When significant parts of plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the company depreciates them separately based on thedr specific useful lives. The carrying
amount of the replace part accaunted far a5 a separate aisel previously | derecognized. Likewise, when a major Inspection Is
performed, ity cost is récognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment a3 & replacernent if the recognition criteria
are tatisfied. Al sther repair and maintenance cost are recagnized in the statement of prafit and lass when incurred, The presant
walue of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after ks use ks Included En the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition eriteria for & provision are met

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on written down value basis as per the rate derived on the basis of
useful life and method prescribed wnder schadule-|! of the companies Act, 2013,

The residual walues, wieful lives and methads of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted prospectively,if appropriate.

Impalrment of Nan-Flnancial Assets

The carrying amounts of other mon-finanda! assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date If there i any indication of
Impairment based on intemal fexternal factors, An asset bs treated as impaired when the carrging amount exceeds its recoverable
value, The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to the present value wsing a perdan discount rate that reflects current market
ascescment of tha tirme value of money and risks specific to the assets. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
and loss in the year in which an asset is identified &s impaired. Alter impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised canrying
amount of the asset ever its remalning useful life. The impairment loas recognized in prior accounting periods B revarsed by
uﬁ;lp_gf:ﬁﬂmlm of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount.




2.2 Servlce Concession Agresments

The Company constructs & upgrades infrastructure [constroction or upgrade serdices) vied to provide a public service and
operates and maintains that Infrastructure {operation serdces) for a specified period of time.

Thesa arrangements may include Infrastructure used in 3 public-to-private sendce concession arrangement for its entire usefid
life. Under Appendix C to Ind AS 115 — Service Concession Arrangements. these arrangements are accounted for based on the
nature of the consideration. The Financial asset model is used 1o the extent that the operater has an unconditional contractual
right to recelve cash or another finandal asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the censtruction services. If the company
performs modre than one service [le. construction or upgrade services and operation services) under & single contract or
arrangement, consideration recefved or recelvable is allocated by reference to the relative falr values of the services delkvered,
when the amounts are segarately dentifiable.

I the finandal asset model, the amownt dwe from the grantor meets the identification of the recelvable which s measured &t fair
value. It is subsequently messured at amortized cost. The amount Initially recognized plus cumulative interast on that amount is
caloulated wsing the effective interest method. Any asset carrled under concession agreements |5 derecognized on disgosal or
when ne future economic benefits are expected from its future use or disposal or when contractuad right to the finandial assets
expires.

Rewenue related to SCA:
Revenue related to construction under a sendce concession arrangement is recognized based on the stage of completion of the
work performed,

2.3 Revenue Recognithon

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow and the revenue can be reliably
measurad, Revenup is measured at the fair value of the consideration recefved or receivable, taking inte account contractually
defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government except to the extént stated

otherwise.

The company has recognized Finance income on the cutstanding balance of trade receivables 22 a pert of revenue from
operations,

2.4 Interest Income
For all debk instruments measured either at amortized codt oF at fair value thraugh other comprehensive Income, interest incomae
Is recorded using the effective interest rate [EIR). Interest income is included in finance income In the statement of profit and loss.

2.5 Taxes on Income

Current Tax

The income tax expenses or credit for the periad is the tax payvable only current period’s taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate adjusted by changes and deferred tax assets and [labifities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
loses. The current tax charge Is caloulated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantislly enacted at the end of the reporting
period,

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences babween tha tax bases of amsets and
liabdities and their carrying amounts for financial statements at the reporting date. Deferred tax is determined wsing tax rates that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax assets is realized or the deferred tax Habilities ks setted.

The camrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it & no longer
probable that sufficent taxable profit will be avallable to allow all or part of the deferred tax assat to be wtilized. Unrecognized
deferred tax assets are re-assessed &t each reporting date and &re recognited to the extent that it has become probable that

futuretamable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered, oz
.l.-"-l - ) P 1 _____.-F'



Deferred tax relating 1o items recognized outsige profit or loss is recognmmad outside profit or loss (efther in other comprehensive
income or in eguity). Deferred tax items are recognized In cormelation to the underying transaction either in OCI or directly in
equity.

Deferred tox assets and deferred tax liabBities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists o set off current Tax assets against
current tax labllites and the deferred taxes relate 1o the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Minimum alternative tax [MAT) credit is recognized as deferred tax g3set only when and to the extent there is comvincing evidence
that the company bill pay normal income tax during the specified perod. such asset is reviewed at gach balance sheet date and
the carrying amaunt of MAT credit asset is written down to the extend there is no longer the comindng evldence to the effect
that the company bill pay normal income tax during the specified period .

2.6 Foredgn Currency Transactions

The company’s finandal statements are presented in INR which is also the company’s functional currency, Forelgn currency
transactions are recorded on Initial recognition in the functional currency. Using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
At each balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary ibems are reported using the dosing exchanpe rate, Exchange differences
that arise on sottiement of monetary items or on reporting at pach balance sheat date or the company's monetary items at the
closing rate re recogniped as income or expenses in the period in which they arise, Non-monetary items which are carried at
historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

1.7 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cach and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and other short term highly liguid investments with an original
miaturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes [n value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash Nlows and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined abowve.
Met of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the company's cash management,

2.8 Earndngs Per Share

Basic eprmings per share are caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss fer the pertod attributable to equity sharehalders (after
deducting preference dividends and attributable tases) by the welghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. For the purpose of caloulating diluted eamnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
pn:ln:iﬂ equity shares except when the resolts would Be antidilutive.

2.9 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions

Provisions are recogniged when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive] as a result of a past event, it s
probable that an autflew of resources embodying econamle benefits will be required to settle the abligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,

The expense relating to 8 provision ks presented In the statement of profit and loss,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted wsing a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriata, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time (s
recognized as a finance cost,

Frovisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. If it |s no Fonger probable that
an cutflow of resounces embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision s reversed,

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets

lity is & possible ebligation that arlses from past events whase existence will be conflrmed by the otourrence or
ﬂ‘h:fﬂi’.llum or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the -:nrnpangr or @ present chligation which is not
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recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be reguired to setthe the obligation. & contingent liability
also arkses In extremely rare cases where there is & liabillty that cannot b recognized because it cannot ba mexsured reliably,
Information on contingent liabilitles Is disclosed in the notes to the finanda statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of
regsources embodying economic benefits is remota;

A contingent assot is a possible asset that arises from the past events and whose existence will be confirmed by the ocourrence or
non-cccurrence of one or more uncertaln future events not within the control of the company, Contingent agsets are not
recognized but are disclosed in the financial statements.

Provisions, contingent liabifities, contingant assets are reviewed at each reporting date.
2.10 Eiliﬂ wvalue added taxes paid on acguisition of assets or on iﬂ:ul‘l‘il‘.’ QEPENEEE

When the tax incurred on a purchase of asiets or services i3 not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax
pald is recognized as part of the cost of acquidtion of the asset or as part of the expense item, a5 applicable- When receivables
and payables are stated with the amount of tax Included. Thenet amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taation
authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Z.11 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the scquisition, construction or production of an asiet that necessarity takes a substantial
pariod of time to get ready for i intended use or sale are capitalixed as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are
expensed n the period in which they occur. Bormrowing costs cansist of interest and other costs that an entity ncwrs in connection
with the borrowing of funds. Bormowing cost slso Includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
berrowing costs.

.12 Employee Benafits

Provident Fund: The contribution to provident fund is in the nature of defined contribution plan. The Company makes
contribution to statutory provident fund in accordance with the Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,
1952 The contribution paid or payable is recognized &s an expense in the period In which serelces gre rendered

Gratubty [Funded): Gratuity is In the nature of defined benefit plan. The cost ks determined using the projected wnit credit method
with actuarfal vaksation being carried at cash at each Balance Sheet date by an independent actuary, The retirement benelits
abligation recognized in the Balance Shest represent the present value of defined benefit obligation as adjusted for recognired
past service cost Actuarial gains and losses are recognized In full in the ather comprehensive income for the peried in which they
AL,

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months rendering services are classified as short term employes benefits.
Beneflts such as salartes, weges, short-term compensated absences, performance incentives etc., and the expected cost of bonus,
ex-gratla are recognized during the period In which the employes renders related service.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognized o5 an expense when employess have rendered the
senvice entitling them to the contribution.

2.13 Financkal Instrumants
A financlal instrument [s any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity,

Financials Asset

Initisl Recognition and Measurement
Financial gs.sn.s_are recognized when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument, The company
determifes the d..a!mﬂl:ath:m of Its financial assets at inital recognition. All financial assets are recognized inftially ot fair value plus
w&« 0osts ’thathre directly attributable to the acguisition of the financial assat exdep llnandal assets classified as falr
uak.lrtl‘pruu.a;h pmﬂt:ll‘hﬁ




Subsaquant Maasuremeant

Far the purpose of subseguent measurement, Financial assets are classified in to three categaries:
[i} Financial Asset at amortized cost

fiijFinancial Atset at Fair Value through OCH {FUTOCH

{liitFinancial Asset at Fair valus through PEL (FYTPL)

The subsequent measurement of financiad asset depends on thelr classificatbon, The classification depends on the oompany’s
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Fimamcial Asset at Amortlzed Cost

Financial Asset” is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
(a) Theaszetis held within a business model whose abjective is to hofd asets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
(b} Cash flows represent solely for repayment of principal and interest.

After inital measurement, such financial assats are subsequenthy measured at amortized cost using the effective intarest rate (EIR)
method. Amortized cost Is caloulated by taking inbo account any discownt or premium on ecgulsition of asset and fees or cosks that
are an integral part of the EIR. ncome from thase finandal asseds is incheded in interest income using the effective interest rate
method.

Financial Asset at Falr value through OCI (FVTOCH)
‘Financial &550t° is classified as at the FYTOC if both of the following oritéria are met:
Al The objective of the business model is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows and sefing the financial assets, and
(b} Theaizet's contractual cash flows represent solely for repayment of principal and Interest. Finencial Asset induded within
the FYTOC! category are measuned initlally as well as at each reporting date at falr walue. Falr value movements are
recognized in the other comprehensive income {OCHL

Financial Asset at Fair Value through PEL
FYTPL is 8 residual categery for Finandal Assets. Sny finencial asset, which dogs not mest the criterda for categorzation as at
armortized cost or &5 FVTOC, is classifiad as at FVTPL

In addition, the company may elect to designate a Fnancial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOC! criteria, as at
FYTPL. However, such election is allowed anly i doing o redueces or eliminates 3 measwrement or recognition inconsistency
(referred to & “atcounting mismatch'].

Equity Instruments

Al eguity Investments In scope of Ind A5 10% are measured at fair value. The company may make an irrevecable election o
present in other comprehensive income subseguent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument
by-instrument basks. The dassification s made on initial recognition and ks irrevocable,

If the group deddes to dassify an oquity instrument as at FVTOC, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OO,

De-recopnition of Financial asset
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asiet or pert of & group of similar financizl assets) is primarily
deracognized when:
iy The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
i) The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset
iii] The company retains the contractudl Aghts to received cash flows fram the finandal asqet but assumes 3 contractual
-~ abligstion to pay cash flows to one or more recipients,

S




Whare the company has transferred the asser, the company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and
rewardi of ownership of the financial assets. in such cases, the financial asset s derecognized. Where the entity has not
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the finandad asset ks not derecognized.

Where the entlty has nefther transferred a flnancal ssser nor retaing substantially all risks and rewards of pwnership of financial

assets; the financial asset [s derecognized if the company has not retained control of the asset. Where the company has retaing
control of the financial asset, the asset s continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing irvolvement in the finandal asset.

Impairment of Financial Assets

In per Ind AS 109, the comparny applies expected cradit bess [ECL) meodel for measurement and recognition of impairment oss en
the followlng fimanclal assets and credit risk exposure:
{a] Fnancial assets that are measured at amortized cost g, loans, debt securithes, depesits, trade recelvabies and bank
balance.
{b} Financial 3ssets that are measured as at FVTOC)
[c} Leasereceivabies under knd AS 17
{d} Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions
that are within the scope of Ind AS 115[(referred to as "Service Concession receivables’ in these Hlustrative financial
statements)
[e} Loan commmitrments which are not rmeasured as at FVTPL
[f} Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FYTPL

For recognithon of Impairment loss of financdal assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a
significant Increase in the credit risk since Inltis! recognition. IF credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-manth ECL is wsed 1o
provide for Impakrment loss. i credit risk has increased significantly, [Hetime ECL &5 used,

In a subseguent pericd, if credit quafity of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant incréase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the company reverts 1o recogniging impairment loss allowance based on 12-manth ECL

Lifetima ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from ol possible default events ower the expected life of a
financial instrument,

Financlal Liabilities
inltial Recognition and Measurement

Financial fiabilities are recognited when the company becomes a party to the contraciual provisions of the Instrument. The
company determines the dassification of financial labitity at inital recognition. All financlal liabilities are recognized initially at fair
value plis trandaction eosts that are directly attributable te the acquisitien of the financlal liabillty except for finandal Babilities
clagsified as fair value through prafit or loss,

Subsequent Messurement
For the purpoge of subsequent measurement, finandal Babilities are dassified in two categorias:

Financlal Liabilites at Amartized Cost

After Inltlal recognition, Interest-beating loans and borrowings are subsequently measured =t amortized cost using the EIR
method. Gairs and losses are recognized In the statement of profic or loss when the llabilities are derecognized as well as through
the EIR amortization process. Amaortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortization is included a3 finance costs in the statement of prafit and loss.

Financial Liabilitkes Measured at Falr Value through Profit or Loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upan initial-recognition as at fair value through profit or loss, Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
Inmryﬁ-f-u m'purp;g:n» ol repurchating in the near term. Financial Babilites st fair value theough profit or loss are carried in the

|'-L'
Si—:-r“’




statement of financlal pasition at falr value with changes in fair value recognized in finance income ar finance costs in the
statement of profit and foss.

De-recognition

A financlal lablity is derecognized when the obligation under the liability s discharged or cencelled or expires. ‘When an existing
financial Eability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing Nabdlity
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification & treated as the de-recognition of the original liabllity and the
recognition of a new liability, The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the staternent of profit or less.

Fair Value Measuremaent

The Company measures finandal instruments at fair value at each reporting date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a llability in an erdery transaction betwean market
participants at the measwrement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sall the

asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

= |n the principal market for the asset or liabiity, or
= |n the absence of a principal market, in the most pdvantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or most advantageous market must be accessible to the company.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account 3 market participant's shility to generate economic benefits
by wsing the asset in its highest and best use or by selling It to another market participant that would use the asset in 1t highest
and best use,

The entity uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the drcumstances and for which sufficient data are avallable to
meaiwre fais value, maximizing the use of relevant observable Inputs and minimizng the use of unchservable inputs.

All assets and llabilities for which fair value |s measured or disclosed n the financial statements are categorized within the fair
value hlerarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair valug measurerment as a whoke:

Level 1: Quwoted [unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Valuation techniquas for which the lowest level input that i significant to the fair value measurement B directly or
indirectly obsensable

Lewied 3: Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that |s signlficant to the falr value mezsurement Is unobservable

For the purpose of falr value disciosures, the Company has determined dasses of assets & liabilities on tha basis of the nature,
characteristics and the risks of the asset or Hability and the level of the fair vales hisrarchy a5 explained sbove.

2.11 Government Grants

Government grants [excepl those existing on transition date) are recognized where there |s reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all atbached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed, When
the grant relates bo an asset, itls recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When the company receives grants of non-monetary assets, The asset and the grant are recorded &t fair value amounts and
released to the statement of profit or loss over the expeched uselul life in a pottern of consumption of the benefit of the

underlying IEtet by equal annual installments. .
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3. Significant Estimates, Judgments and Astumptions

The preparation af financal statements reguires management to exercise jJudgment in applying the company's accounting policles.
It alco requires the wse of estimated and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of ascets, Habilities, income and expenses
and the accompanying discosures including dischosure of contingent labdlides. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underhying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoeing bests, with revisions recognized in the periad in which the
eatimates are revised and in @ny future periods affected,

3.1 Contingencies and Commitments

in the normal course of business, contingent liabilitles may arise from litgation and other claims against the company, Potential
liabilities that have a low prebability of crystalizing or are very difficult to guantity reliabdy, are treated as contingent liabfities.
Such Habilithes are disclosed in the notes, If any, but are not provided for in the financial statements. Thare can be no assurance
regarding the finad outcome of these legal proceedings,

3.2 Impairment Testing

i, Judament is slso reguired in evaluating the likelihood of collection of customer debt after revenue has been recognized,

This evaluation requires estimates to be made, incduding the level of provision te be made for amounts with uncertain

recovery profiles. Provisions are based on historical trends in the percentoge of debts which are not recovered, or on
mone details reviews of individually significant balances.

ii, Determining whether the carrying amount of these assets has any indication of impairment slso requires judgment. IF an
indication of impairment 4 identified, further judgment is required to assess whether the carrying amount can be
supported by tha net present value of future cash flows forecast to be derived from the asset. This forecast involves cash
fiow projections and selecting the approprigle discount rete,

3.3 Tanes
a. Thecompany's tax change is the sum of the total current and deferred tax charges. The calculation of the company’s total
tax charge necessarily irvolves a degres of estimation and judgment in respect of certain items whose tax treatment
cannot be finally determined until resolution has been reached with the relevant tax authority or, as sppropriate, through
4 formal legal process,

b. Accruals for tax contingencies require management to make judgments and estimates in relation o tax audit issues and
ENpodures.

£ The recognition of deferred tax essets Is based upon whether It s more llkely than not that sufficient and suitable taxabie
profits will be avallable In the future against which the reversal of termporary differences can be deducted. Whire the
temporary differences are refated 1o losses, the avaabifity of the losses to offset against forecast taxable profits is also
considered. Recognition therefore involves judgment regarding the future finandal performance of the particular legal
entity ar tax company bn which the deferred tax asset has been recognized.

3.4 Fair Value Measurement

The fair valve of finandal instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation technigues. In
applying the valuation technigues, management makes maximum use of markat inputs and uses estimates and assurnptions that
are, a5 far a5 possible, consistent with observable data that market participants would use in pricing the Instrument. Where
applicable data s not observable, management uses its best estimate about the assumpGons that market participants would
make. These estimates may vary form the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction &t the reporting
da ‘Batafis of the key assumptions (Refer note-17).
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PHNC Bithur Kanpuwr Highways Private Limited
CIN U45200UP2020FPTC129528
Wotes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 202%

Maote 2 : Other Non Current Financial Assets

% in lakhs)
Az at Az at
T March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
Larvices Concession Racedvablas B5.239.70 F7,506.748
Total 59,239.70 T7.996.70
Maoté 3 : Dther Non Current Adsets
{¥ in lakhs)
A5 pt &5 at
LRI March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
Tax Deducred at Source-Income Tax 1.306.592 652.53
IG5T Input Tax Credit 33377 8, 71501
Security Deposic 42 85 30.40
Total 4 687 .48 10,407.94
Mate 4 : Current Financlal Assets- Trade Recehables
{¥ in lakhs)
As ap A5 8t
Particul
i March31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Undisputed Trade Recehvables- Considered Good
Matiomal Highways Autharity of india 110335 2.566.22
Tatal 1.103.35 !,55‘&.21
Az at Az at
Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule Period March 31, 2026 March 31, 2024
{Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered Good Less than & Moths

& Moths to 1 Year
1 Yearto 2 Years

2 Years to 3 Yesrs
More than 3 Years

L103.3%

1,568.32

Undisputed Trade Recelvables- Which have Significant increase

Less than § Moths
& Moths to I Yaar
1 Year o 1 Years

1 Years to 3 Years
More than 3 Years

Lindizputed Trade Receivables- Credit Impaired

Less than b Moths
& Moths to 1 Year
1 Year to 1 ¥ears

2 Years to 3 Years
Bore than 3 Years

Crisputed Trade Receivables- Considered Good

Less than & Moths
6 Moths to 1 Year
1 Year to 1 Years

2 Years to 3 Years
bore than 3 Years

Disputed Trade Recetvables- Which have Significant Increase

Lewx than 6 Moths
& Moths to 1 Year
1 ¥earto d Years

2 Years to 3 Years
More than 3 Years

Disputed Trade Receivablas- Credit Impaired

Less than & Moths
& Moths to 1 Year
1 Year 1o 2 Yeard

% Years to 3 Yaars
More than 3 Years
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PFNC Bithur Eanpur Highways Private Limited
CIN U45Z205UP2020PTCL2952R

Motes to Finandial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note 5 Investments

% in |lakhs)
A5 at A5 at
e March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Investrment in Mutual Funds 2649734 2,001.93
Total| 1.997.38 2,001.93
As at Az at
Particil
i March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Aggregate Book Yalue of Ouoted Investments 2.973.60 1,373.46
Appregate Market Value of Queted Investmeants 2.997.38 4,001.53
Agpregate Book Value of Unguoted Investmeants 2 =
Appregats |mpairment i Value of Investments
Mote 621 Cash and Bank Balances
(T bn lakhs)
Az pt As Bt
Particula
iy March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Balances with Bank 1,312.:26 1.140.0%
Fleed deposit] With Maturity up to 3 Months) 7.500.00 r
Total| BE1226 L.140.05
Mote 6.1 : Other Bank Balances
(¥ in |akhs)
As at Az at
ii
g March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Flued deposit (Maturity More Than Three Manth But Less Than 13 Months) 1, 350000 1,650.00
Total| 1,850.00 1,650.00
Mote 7 3 Other Financial Assets
{T in lakhs)
particul Az at A5 at
March 31, 2025 Parch 31, 2034
Arccrued interest on Fived Deposits 179093 46.92
Total| 179.92 46.592
Mote B = Dther Curment Assets
[T in lzkhs)
As at Asat
RarcH March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advance o Vendors 14.99 0.0%
Prepaid Expenses 0.18 002
Tex Deducted ot Source- GST 61057 37773
GAT Input Tax Cradit 333000 -

3,855.74

71.80

@
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PMC Bithur Kanpur Highways Private Limited
CIN U45201UPZ020PTCLES52E

Maotes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 9 : Share Capital
(% in lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Authorised
|9,20,00,000 (F/¥ 9,90,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- Each 9900000 5,500.00
Equity Shares - lsswed, Subseribed & Paid UP
5 B8, 50,000 [P, 90,000} Equity Shares of Rs 100/- Each 4 E89.00 9, EED.D0
Motes 9.1
{a) Reconciliation of the Shares Outstanding at the Beginning and at the End of the Reporting Year
Asg at A5 at
il March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening Balanca 9 E8,90,000,00 4.54,40,000)
Issiied during the Year 4,94 50,000
Outstanding at the end of the Year o B8 9000000 EE-‘BLHEI,IIID
(&) Details of Shares Held by Promoters
s at b
Partlculars March 31, 2025 AR P
Mo of Shares Noof Shares
5,88 85 590 o HE _ED,990
PMLC Infra Holdings Limited % Holdings % Holdings
100 100
Mo of Shares Mo ef Shares
10 10
PNC Infratech Limited
% Holdings % Holdings

Rights and Restrictions Attached to Equity Sharas

The Comgany has only one class of eguity shares having a par value of T10 per share. Each sharshalder is eligible for one vote
per share held. Wn case any dividend is propoded by the Board of Directors the same i3 subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in the case of Interim Dividend. There are restrictions attached to
Eauity Shares in relation to the term loan taken by the company pursuant to loan agreement with Constortum of lenders.

There ar2 0o bonus shares/share issued for consideration other than cash and share bough

i back since company incorposated.
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Motes to Financlal $tatements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 10: Other Eguity

Retained Earnings (% in lakhs)
As at Asat
Particula
i March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Opening Balancs 557.13 234,69
Net Prafit for the year 274,25 331.44
Closing Balance 831.38 L5713

] i'

T,
Retalned Earnings [
This comprise company's undistribuled profit after taxes,




PNC Bithur Kanpur Highways Private Limited
CIN U452 UP2020PTC120528
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Maote 11 ; Mon Current Borrowings

{% in lakhs]
As at As at
Particula
iz March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
{a) Secured

Term Loans 69,620.18 73,785.59
Less: Current Maturity of Long Term Debis (Refer Note Na 13) 4 340.00 4, 1E5.00
§5.280.18 69,600.9%

[ (B} Unsecured
Unsecured loan from retated party® 9,501.00 8,501.00
Tatal 74,751.18 79,101.99

*Refer Note No.-31
(A) Nature of Security -

([} Flrst charge on all the Company's immowable assets) movable assets | except projact assets), ifamy , both present and futurs.

(il First change over all revenue, recelvables and authorized Investrnents of the Company's from the project or otheraise.
i) Ferst charge over the rights, title and interest of the Company's related to the project from all contracts, insurances, icended, in 1o

and other all praject documents,

v} First chasge owver all the banks accounts af the Company includging the Escrow BCCounts and The sub abiounts.

[v} First charge on all Intangioles and uncalled capital of the borrowser both present & future, save and except the project astets.
{wil A first charge by way of msignment or otherwise creation on security interest in all the right, titile, interest, benefits, clalms, and

demand in the projéct documents

[vil) Pledge of shares of 1% fo the isswed, paid and wating equity shame capital beld by the promoter &l final settlement date subject o

conditiong stipulated in Copceision Agreemant and priod wiittén approval of NHAL

Mote- The aforesakd shall be collectively referred to the “Securtty™, The above security will rank Par passu intarse amang the Lenders,

Collateral Security- ML
Personal/Corporate Guarantee- NIL

Terms of Regayments for Long Term Borrowings:-
(A} Terms of Repayment

{ij 27 Unegual half yearly installments commencing after 7 manths from date of schadule commerncial operation date.

() Unsecured boan taken |s interest free and shall be repayable sulblect to pricr approval of kenders after complying the conditions as

stipulated in their sanction.
Note 12 : Provisions
(T in lakhs)
As at Asat
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 20324
Employee Benefit
Prowiskon for IEr'Elll.l..it‘p‘I 1B74 2.37
PFrowvision for Leave Encashment # 1.E5 Q.60
I Total| 22.59 2.81
*Hefer Mote ND.35
il Refer Hote Mo 36
Hote 13 : Borrowings
T in lakdhs)
Particulars st b
March 31, 2025 'I“I'd'l'il'. 2024
Spgured
Current Matwrity of Long Term Debs 4.340.00 4,185.00
Total| 4,340.00 /1 418500




PNC Bithur Kanpuer Highways Privato Limited
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Motes to Financlal Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

MNote 14 : Trade Payvable

(T In |akhs)
Ag at s st
Particula
T March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Total cutstanding dues of micro, small and medium entereprises® - -
Total outstanding dues of credites ather than micro, small and medium entereprises ¥ 209493 1.520.22
Tozal| 509,49 150,22

* The disclosure in respect of the amount payable to enterprises which have provided goods and sendices to the Company and which
quakify undar the definition of micro and small enterprises as defined under Micra, Small and Medium Development Act 2006 has been
made in the financial statement 2% at March 31, 2025 based on the information received and available with the comparmy. On the bais of
such information, no knperest s payabbe o any micro,small and medium enterprises. Auditors have refied upon the informations

provided by the Company,

¥ includes ¥342,65 lakhs paybale to related party, [Previous Year T 134751 lakhy |-Refer Nobe No.26
The Company 's axposwre to ourmency and lguidity risks related to the trade payable is disciosed note no-28

A5 at As st
Trade Payables Ageing schedule Ferfod March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
|MEME 0to 1l Year - .
1¥earto 2 Years =
2 Years to 3 Years - -
More than 3 Years . 2
Total v:ﬂ‘!-'ISI-I'II;,t
(Others Oto 1 Year 09.43 1520.22
1 Year to 2 Years - -
£ fears o 3 Years -
More than 3 Years - -
Total of Others Sk 448 1,520,232
|Disputed dues of MSME 0 to 1 Year * 2
1 ¥earsa 2 Years =
2 Years to 3 Years - -
More than 3 Years -
Total of Disputed dues of MSME - .
[(Disputed dues af Others O te 1 Year : -
1 ¥ear to 2 Years - -
i fearsto 3 Years =
More than 3 Years - -
Total of Dispubed dues of others| - -
MNote 15 © Other Currént Financial Liabliiies:
(Ein lﬂ'lhlil
A5 at Asat
Sty March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salary Pavables and Other Dues of Emploves 20.13 h.32
Expencas Payabie E49.65 ES1.E1
Retention Payable 3607 139,54
LAudit Fees Payable a9 075
Independent Fees Payabie 15.00 -
Current Tax provisian 1,522.83 5063
Total 2,444 59 1.049.04




PHC Bithur Kanpur Highways Private Limited
CIN L4520 1IUP2020PTCI2952E
HWotes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 16 : Other Current Liablities:
[T in lakhs)
As &l Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Statitery Dues 0.EE B354
Total 0.Ef §3.54
Note 17: Currert Provislons
(% in lakhs)
AS &l Asat
Parch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Employes Benefit
Prowigiod for Gratusity® L.3% 0.61
Prowition for Leave Encashmenid 133 0.20
Total 6.72 0.81
*Rafer Mote Mo.35
il Raler Mote Mo, 36
Mote 18 : Revenue From Operation
(¥ in lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
lﬂmstml:tl-nn Resanue 145783 23,491.06
interest Incoma on Service Concession Recehables B.5T0.65 7.572.14
Total| 10,037.48 31,063.20
Mote 19 : Other Income
(¥ in lakhs)
Year ended Yoar ended
Barch 31, 2025 March 31, 2034
Interest on Fixed Deposits 147.78 52.13
Gain/|loss) on Redemption of Mutual Funds 3353 13353
Gain on Fair Valuation of Mutual Funds [4.63]) 593
Interast on Income Tax Refund 1411 893
_ Tatal 500,73 204.52
*recoivable from related party[Refer Mote no., 26)
MNota 20 ;: Employee Benefit Expenses
[X in akhs)
Yoar endad Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31,2024
SEPan,r&Wagfd._ 183.26 2477
Total 183.26| . 24.77
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Motes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 21 : Finance Cost

(¥ in lakhs)
sia Year ended Year ended
¥ hAarch 31, 2025 March 31,2024
interest Expandss an Temm Loan 652683 B,430.35
interest Expenses on Mobilization Advance - 51.80
Bank Charges 4 98 5.56
Tatal 6,531.81 BAET.T1
Mote 22 : Dther Expenses
T In lakhs
Particist Year ended Year endad
Bdarch 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Constructipn Expenses® 1,505 .96 23, 660004
Cither Site Expenses 189.23 18.29
Legal & Professional Charges 11.58 1050
insurance Charges - 1 Lir]
Penalty Charges 019
intarmet Expenses - 3
Electricity Expenses 1124
Trawelling Domestic - 011
Misceflaneous Expensas 256.23 135
Hire Charges - Dther 3364 3167
Labour Charges 2.05 3036
Audlt Feas 1.50 1.00
Mess Expansas 1.0% -
ES| & other contribu 011 :
C5A Expenses ** 7.00 135
Coniume Fioal 0.12 -
| Total I_I.IH.I'.I..I-I 23, 76819
*encecued by related pasty(Refere Mote no.26)
Mote 26 : Corporate Social Responsiablity (C5R)**
(¥ in Lakha)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 6.70 118
Amount of expenditure incurrad 7.00 135
Shortfall at the end of the year - -
Total of prewioud yeard sharttall -
Reasan for shortfall KA MA
. Promoting Plantation| Promoting animal
Ma of C5E activities
o ot & animal welfare efc. weifare atc.
Detadls of related party transactions, &.g., contribution to a trust controfed by the — —,
comipany In relathon to C5R expenditure a5 per relevant Accounting Standard
Where 3§ provision i made with respect 1o 3 lEability incurred by entering into a contractual WA A

GHNigaton, the movements in the provision during the vear should be shown separately
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Motes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 24 : Earning Per Share

{% in Lakhs E ng. of shares & EPS)

Year ended Year ended

Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

{a] Profit/[Loss) available to Equity Shareholders (Rs. In lakhs) 374,25 A22.04
i) ‘Welghted Average Number of Equity Shares QEE. 90 916.91
¢} Nominal Value of Equity Shares (in %) 10000 10.00
{d) Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share [(a)/{b) (in ) 0.28] 0.35)

Mote 25 : Operating Segment Information

The Company operates in only one segment, namely "Infrastructure Deviopment on Hybrid Annuity Model” hence there are no
reportable segments under Ind AS-108 “Segment Reporting’. Hence, separate business segment information s not applicable.

The directors of the company has been identified a3 The Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM). The Chief Operating Decision
Maker aleo monitors the operating results as one single segment for the purpase of making decisions about resource allocation
and performance assessment and hence, there are no additional disclosures to be provided other than those already provided

9 S

in the financlal statements.

There is only ong customer having more than 10% of the total revenue.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note 26 ; Refated Party Transactions
{A) Listof Related Parties

[a) Parent Entity
Dwnership Intarest | Ownership Interest
Marre Type Az at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
PNC Infra Holdings Limited nmesiiabe Holding 100% 100%
company
PNC Infratech Limited® Ultimate halding
*holds 10 Eguity Shares.
{B] Transactions Between Related Parties
The following transactions were carrbed out with the related partles In the ordinary coerse of business,
[T in lakhs)
5. Mo Year ended Year ended
MNature of Transaction March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1 EPC Contract & UtiHty Shifting
PNC Infratech Limited 1.457.83 2345107
2 Share Capital issued
PHE Infra Holdings Limited 1,630.00
E | Hire Charges
PHC Infratech Limited - 33.67
4  |Unsecured Loan taken
PHC Infratech Limited 1,565.00
{C ] Balance Outstanding at the end of the year:-
(¥ in lakhs}
i As at As at
M9 | particutars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1 Trade Payables
PMC Infratech Limited 34265 1,347.51
2 Retention Payable
PNE Infratech Limited 7.98 139.54
3 Unsacurad Loan
PNC infratech Limited §,501.00 8,501.00
(D} Compensation to Key Managerial Person
(% Im lakhs)
Year andad Year anded
5r. No. Key Managerial Pers
" 2 i March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
1 |Abhishek Agarwal 433 434

(E) Terms and Conditions

The transactions with the related parties are made on term equivalent to those that prevail In arm®s length transactions. The
assassment is under taken gach financial year through examining the flnanclal position of the related party and in the market In
which the refdléd pacty operates. All outstanding balances will be settled in cash,
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Maote 3T i Falr Value Pleasurement

O Comparision by class of carrging smount and fair value of the compary's financial instrumeants, the carrying amaunts of tha financial ingtrements reasonably appresbmates fair vabae,

Financial Instruments by Category

{¥ in Lalhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As Bt March 31, 2024
Amaortised Cost FUTPL FYTOCH Amortised Cost FVTPL FATOC!
Financial Assct
Serviol Concession Fece vable 69.239.70 - 1795808 -
Current Trade Recelvable 1.103.35 2.568.22
Investments i Mutual fund 2547.18 2,997,380 - 2,001.493 2,001,593 -
Other Financal Aziats - - - -
Cash and Bank Balances EEl_i'.zE = = 1,140005 .
Total Fnanclal Assets 62,152.68 2,097.36 = 83, 70698 2,001,593 =
Finandial Liablities
darrowings 7212118 - - B3, 286.499 -
Trada Payahlzs B0 45 - - 1,530,232 -
ﬂE_t_EﬂﬁEl-n!. a6.07 13054 -
Total Financisl Lishdlities 19,666, 75 - - 84,946.74 - -
{1} Falr Valua Hierarchy

This section explaing the judpements and estimates made in determindng the fair values of the fimanclal instrements that are measiered at amortised cost and for which fair vahies are disdazed In financial
Tha follewsing talda provides the fakr value measurement hisrarchy of Company's asset ard kabilities, grouped inta Level 1 to Lovel 2 as described below =

Lewvel 1: Quoted [umadjusted ] market praces m active miarkets for idertical azsats or llabéites,
Level 2: Wabuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fak value measurement is direcily or indirectly obsenable,
Level 3: Valuation tethnigues Tar which the lowest level input that ks significant to the falr value measurement is uncbservable

[T in lakhs}
Falr Value Measurement usl
s-unliIEm mﬂt
Carrying Value Quaoted price in
Facliculo March 31, 2025 Active Market Cbservable Uncheervible
ILevel 1) Enputs Inputs
[Liwel 21 iieved 31
(&) Financial Assets and Liabifities Measured at Falr Value at March 31,
2025
Ineistment n Mutizal Fund 1,997 .38 299738
[B] Financlal Asseis and Liabilities Messured 8t Amortised Cost for - -
Which Fair Values are Disdiosed at Barch 31, 2025
(i} Finandial Assets
Service Concesshan Recevable 59,239,770 - 6558,739,70
Trade Recelvables 1,103.35 - 1,103.35
T Total 73340437 2,097,368 70.3483.05
{} Financial Liabilities AR
Borrowings o il 9,171,148 . = 79,121 18
| i 1 Total| 79,121.18 | - 79,121.18 -

P4
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. (€ in lakhs)
Fair Value Measurement using
Zignificant Eignificant
Particulars Carrying Value Quated price in Ohservable Unabservabbe
March 31, 2024 Active Markst Inpits Inputs
(Level 1] [Lewel 2) [Lowal 3)
(4] Financial Assets and Liabilities Meassured at Fair Value at March 31,
2024
Insstment in Mutual Fund 2,001.93 4,001.93 -
(8] Financial Assets and Liabilites Measured at Amortised Cost for - - -
Which Fair Values are Dischosed at Morch 31, 2024
(i} Financial Assets
Sarvice Comtestion Recervable 775996, TE FrA9h T8
Trade Rocehables 1,568.11 2.560.23
Total B2.566.33 2.001.93 B, 565.00 =

[ii} Financial Uabilities
Borrowings 53.286.99 83,286,539
I Total £3,286.39 . §3,286.09

{if] Waluation Technigues used to Determine Fair Value

The Company maintains policles snd procedures to vabue financial assats or financial lablites using the best and most relevant dota available, The falr values of the fnancial assets and liabilities are included at

the amount that would be recebsad to sell an asset or pald 0 transfer a Babdity in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,

The fallowing Method and Assumptions are Used to Estimate Fair Values:
The Casrying amounts of trade payables, short werm borrowings, cesh and cash equivalents, short term depasitif/retentions, expenses payable et are considered to be their falr value , due to their short barm

natre,

Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate recelvablies [ borrowings are ovaluated by the Company based om parametars tuch s interest rates, specific country risk factors, crodit ridk and other risk characteristics,
For barrowing falr value i determined by using the discounted cash flow {OCF) method using discount rate that reflects the sseers borrawings rate; Rlsk of nan-performance o the cempany b considered to

be insignificant In valuaticn.

The falr value of trade receivables, security depostts and retentions are evaliztad o0 parameters swech as interest rate and other risk factors. Fair value s belng determoned by using the discounted cash flow

(DCF)

Financinl nesets and Rabilitied maasurad af fair value and the carrying amouwnt & the fairwaloe,

&)

ISR o
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Mobe ZE @ FINANCLAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's principal financial Babilities, other than derivatives, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities i4 to manags finsnoes for
The Company's actielties are exposed 1o market risk, credit risk and Bguidity fizk

L Market risk
Markat rick |s the risk that the fair vabue or future cash fows of & financial instrument will fluctueate because of changes in marken prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: currency

{3} Interest Rate Risk
Interast rate risk is comgany’s cash Tiow and pralit on sccount of movement in market interest rates. For the company Interest risk arlses mainly from [nterest bearing barrowings which

are ot floating rates. To mitigate nterest rate risk, the company closely monktors market risk,

E in lakhs)
A at March 31, Az ak March 31,
i
1 Interest Risk Expasare A 202
Varaibale Rate Borrowings G960, 18 13 78599

(1] Intarest Rate Sensithity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rate on that portion of borrowing affected. With all other variable hebd constant, the

company's profit before tax 5 affected through the impact of change in interest rate of borrowing as foflows-

[¥ in kakhs}
Pasticulars Increase Decrease | Effect an Profit

lesbenn bl b
March 31,2035 + 50y -54 -348.10/345.10
March 31,2024 #5050 -368,93/368.93

(b} Foreign Currency Risk
The Company does not operates internationally and as the Company has not obtained any foreign currency loans and also doesn’t have any foreign currency trade payables and forelgn

(el Price Rlzk
The company Exposure Lo price Fik n:r]ses from investments in mutal fund anthe current year end. These investmients are actively traded in the market and are held for short period of
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Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty will dofault on it contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the company. To manage this, the Company periodcally
The company has enly one trade recefvables that & company has are against the the grant to be recleved, which & 8 goverment suthosity therefore company i not axposed o any

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk Is defined as the risk that company will not be pble v settle or meet itz obligation en time or 81 a reasonable price, The Company's objective is to at all times maintain

The table below provides detalls regarding the remalning contractual maturithes of financlal labilitles at the reporting date based on contractual undiscoimbed payments:

[ in lakhs)
Fias Thu More Than One Year
As st March 31, 2025 Carrying Amount O Demand P and Less Than Three  More Than 3 Years Tatal
Yaa
Barfovings 75.121.38 4,340,00 ;.&55-% £5,326.18 79,121.18
Trade payables 500,40 - 500,49 - = 509449
Dther Liabilities 2.444.59 1.444.59 - - 2.444.59
Total B2,075.37 - 7,254,08 9,455.00 65,325.18 E2075.27
(¥ in lakhs)
el i Maore Than One Year
As st March 31, 2024 Carrying Amount On Demand O Vet and Less Than Three  Mare Than 3 Years Total
Year
Borrowings 83,286,959 4,185.00 B,GED.OD 70,421,599 B3, 286.89
Trade payahles 152022 - 1.520.22 - - 1,520.22
Other Uabilities 1,0:45.04 1,045.04 - - 104504
Tovtad B5,856.25 - 6,754, 26 B, 6E0.00 T0,421.99 85 856,25

Note 28 :Lontingent Liabdities and Commitmaents [ To the Extend not Provided For)- HiL,

b 8

i

pe



FMNE Bithur Kanpur Highways Private Limited
CIN LM5201UPZ0Z0PTCIZ952E
MNotes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Pote 30 : Capital Management

The primary objective of the Compamyt Capital Managemant & to maximise the sharsholder value and Blso maintain z2n optimal
cagital sbructura o redude cost of capital, In order to manage the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of divigend
paid to shareholders, réturn on capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts,

The Company manages its capital structure and rmakes sdfustment in light of chamges in economic condition and the requirements of
the financial cowenants, il any, The Company montons capitel using 8 gearing ratso, which is net debt divided by total capital plus debt,
IT in lakhs it ratl

As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Total Barrpwings (excluding unsecured loan teken from related party refer Mote No-25) &3.620.18 73,785.599
rI:tla:- Cash & Cash Eguivalents B,812.25 1,140.05
Debt [A] 60,807,592 72,645,895
Equity Share Capital {inchuding urdacured loan taken fram related party refer Note No-25) 19,300.00 19,390.00
Crthear Emguity B31.38 557.13
Total Eguity (B) 20,.221.38 19,947.13
Debt o Equity ratio (A8} 3.01 3.64
Mote-31 Conceizion Arrangements- Main Features
i Mame of The Concession PMNC Bithur Kanpur Highways |P) Limited
i) Description of Arrangements Development al four laning from ken. 356000 to km 414.000

Allgarh to Kanpur section of WH-51 "0n Hybrid Annulty
Modef™ under Bharatrala Pariya|ns in the state of Utter Pradach,

i} Significant Term of Arrangements Period of Concastion: 15 yesrs fram COD
Construction Perad : 910 days
Remuneration: Annuity, Interest, Q&M
Inwestment grant from Concession grantor: Yes
Infrastructung retum to grantor at end of Concession : Yes
Inwestment and renesyal abligation: No
Repricing dates- Half yearly for O&M basis wpon which
repricing ar re negotiation is determined ; inflation price
index as defined in concession agreement,

Mote-32 Unsecured loan of T 9 500.00 Lakhs taken by the comparny Trom related party[ Ultimate Parent Company] i in leu of equity
as per terms of Coneeszion Agraement dated August 05 2020, which is interest free,

MNote-33 Details of loan given, imestments mads and guarantes given covered Ufs 136 of the Companles Act,2013.

The Company is engaged in the business of providing infrastrucal Facllitles as specified under Schedula VI of the Companies Act 2013,
ithe "Act®| and hence the provision of section 186 of tha Act ralsted 1o ban/ gusrantees given oF secufitiss provided are not
applicable to the Comparry. There are no investrments made by the Company during the pedod,

Mote-34 Figures for the previous pericd have besn regroupped frumnged,-agjur necessary to confirm the cument year

= iy
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Mote: 35 Empéoyee Defined Benelit- Grauity Provision

The disclesuse is reguired by INDAS-19  Empleyvas Banefits” ang as under-

The Liability for Employes Gratuity 5 detereminged on acmurial valuation wsing Projected wnit oredit method.

The obligation are a5 undar-

Table 1: Mamber Data Statistics

5.Mo. Particulars For the year ending
31-03-2025 31-03-2034
1 [Memberof Empioyess e 30
2 |Mormal Retirement Sge &0 =]
3 |Awerage Age |inyrs) IT36 31.55
4 |Mverage Past Senvice [in yrs) 477 180
5 awerage Monthly Salary {in Rs) 13,151 14,184
B |Fubere Senvice [ yrsh TrGga 4845
7 |weighted Average duration of D80 .86 39%
Table 2; Benefits Valwed
1 |Ehgibdiny All permanent employess
2 |Gratuity Salary Basic Maonthiy Salary
Completed years of service, service of &
& iy moanths & above & rounded as ane year
4 [Mineon vesting period & Years of continuous senvice

5 Mermal Retirement Benefit

b |Death/Disability in Service Benefit
7 |Leawing 3ervice Benefit

1526 Service ® Gratulty Salary, sulject to

2000000/

e a5 nonmal retirement benefit
I leanves after 5 years of conginusous
seryice — Mormal Retimement Benefit,

Tahde 3: Significant Actuarial Assumptions

(¥ in lakhs)
S.No. Particulars For the year ending
31-03-2025 31-03-2024
1 Discourt Aate 605N 5.05%
2 |Expected Return on Plan Assets 0.00% 0.00%
3 |[salary Escalstion Rate [pa) 5 001% 5.00%
4 rition Rate [pa.) 25.00% 5.00%
100 of 100% of
3 R lALh 12-14 ALk 12-14
& |Disabliity Rate No explicit Mo explci
Valuation Disclosure Tables
Table 4: Change in Defined Benefit Dbligation
(2 in Lakhs]
5o, Particulars 01-04-2024 To 01-04-2023 To
31-03-202% 31-03-2024
1 |Defined banelit obligation at beginning of year 2.4
1 |Service cost .
«CLTTemT Senioe Dot 331 0.58
b Past service cost - vested . 234
. Pt service cost - unvestad . .
3 |Imberest expenied 020
] Cash Moy a
2, Benefit payments froem plan .
b Benefit payments from emiployer - -
3 Actuarial Gans and Losses
a. Effect of changes in demographic assumptions - .
b, Effect of changes in financisl assumptisns 034
et of experience adjrstments 17.39 .
6 ~{Franster o f0ut .
i obifigation at end of yeat o~ 2413

?-K:P
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PHC Bithur Kanpiar Higbways Private Limited
CiN UaS301UPZ0Z0PTCIZSS2S
Motes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Bifurcation of the nt value of tion at the end of the {2 In lakhs)
Pa &y 31-03-2025 31032024
Current Obligations 539 061
Man-Current Oblgations 18.74 232
Tatal Obligation 24.13 2.82
Tabda 5: Change in Fair Valua of Plan Assets
{X in lachs)
S.No. Particulars 01-04-2024 To 01-04-2023 To
31-03-2025 31-03-2024
1 |Fair valua of plan assets at baginning of year % =
2 |Other Adjestments
3 |Charges and Tases - =
4 |Espected return on plan assets : -
5 |Cashflows
a. Total employer™s contribution
(il Emplayer contributions -
(i) Employer direct barefit payrments =
b. Benefit payments from plan assets -
c. Benefit payments from employer . -
B Actuarial Gaing and Losset on Plan AsSets
. Effect of changes in financial assumptions - -
b. Effect of experionce adpustmaents = -
7 Transfar in /Out
a. Transfer in - -
b, Transfer cut -
8 |Fair value of plan assets at end of year -
9  JActual Return On Plan Assets - -
Table &: Amounts recognized in the Balance Shaet
{€in I:H:-:t
5N, Particulars 01-04-2024 Ta O1-08-2023 To
11-03-2025 51-08-2024
1 |IZI-E'!ir'rEd benefit obligation 24,13 292
2 |Fairvalue of plan assets - -
3 Fumdled status - Deficity (Surplus) 24.13 202
4 |Effect of asset ceiling - -
5 |met defined banefit - [Lisbilig)) Avtst {2413 z.a3)|
Table 7: Met Periodic benefit cost recogrized in the Profit and Loss
[% in lakhs]
S.Mo. Particulars D1-04-2024 Ta 01-04-2023 To
31-03-2025 31-03-2024
| Lurrent Service Cost i3 0.58
2 Intereit Expense - Obligation 0.20 =
3 |interest {Incoma) - Plan Assets - -
4 |Past Service Cosg
5

Mek Periodic banefit cost recognizedinthe P& L

o
L ]
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FNC Bithur Kanpur Highways Private Limited
CIN S 2030 P2020PTCI2O528
Motes to Financial Staternents for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Table 8: Re-maasuramant

[¥ i lakhs]
5. NG, Particulars 01-04-2024 To 01-04-2023 To
3i-03-3025 F1-03-2024
1 Actuarial (Gains)f Losses on obligations 17.69 -
2 Return on Plan Assets, eaciuding amoung recognized in the net interest experse - -
3 Change in dstet Ceilng - -
q Re-measurement Costy (Credit) for the year 1?.&? -
Table 5 Balance Sheet Reconclliation
(T i Ml'u|
Mo Particulars O1-08-2024 To 01-04-2023 To
31-03-2025 31-03-2024
i Het defined benefit [Eability ) atset st beginnng of yesr .02} -
F Unrecognined past service oost at the beginning of the pear = =
3 Evpense |nthe PR L {3.51) 12.92)]
4 Total Aemeasurerme=nts included in OC) [17.6%) =
g Emplayer"s Tatal Contribution - -
6 |Wet ransfer -
T |Unsecognised past service Cost at the end of the year - -
B |Met defired benefit asset a6 at end of year [24.13) {2.92])
Table 10: Expected Future Cashflows & Discontinuance Liablliy
(T in Eakhis)
1 |Espected emphoyer contributions Mext year 131
2 Discontinance liability 2887
ENo Maturity Profile of Defined Benaflt Obligation e
Parymant
i 2025 574
i 2027 5.08
3 238 415
4 2039 3A7
g 2030 277
B J031 - ¥3I6 650
Table 11: Aecognistion of Past Service Cost
_ [T i lakhs)
5.Na, Particulars O1-04-2024 To 02-04-2023 To
31-03-2025 31-03-2024
1 |Unrecagnized Past Service Costf{Credit) as at the beginning of the year - -
F Fast Sesrvice Cost (Credit) for the year - 234
3 |Pest Service (Costl) Credit recognized during the year - {2.34)
& Linrecogn whoe Cosy/[Credit) as at the end ol year - o, -

"B 7 g O
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PNC Bithur Kangur Highways Private Limited
CIN UdS201UP2020FTCIZ952E
Motes 1o Financlal Statements for the Year Ended Marnch 31, 2025

Table 12: Major Categories of Plan Assets[ss 8 % of tatal Plan Assets)

£ Mo Aczet Categories For the year ending
31-03-2025 31-03-2024
1 Government of india Securities 0,06 CLDOH
1 |Siate Government Securities 0,00% LU0k
3 High Ouslity Corporate Bonds 0.0 LEEE b7
4 Equity shares of listed compankes .00 LD
5 PIOpeITy . 00rE LO0%
o |Special Deposit Scherma 0.00% L0
7 Funas managed by Insurer .00 L0
8  |Others (to specify| 0,00% 0005
9 |Taotal .00 0%

Table 13: Sensithvity of Defined Benefit Dbligation [DBO) to key assumpiions

The financisl results are sensitive 1o the actuanial assumptions, The charges 1o the Defined Benefit Obligations for increase and
decrease from assumed salary escalation, withdrawal and discount rates are gven below:

5.Mo. Scenario DEQ Variaticn
1 |Umder Base Scenario 24,13 0,00
2 |Salary Increase Rate - Plus 100 Basks Points 4.7 275N
31 [5alary Increase Aate - Minus 100 Basls Points 13.49 -1.63%
4  |Withdrawal Rate - Flus 100 Basis Points 24,10 0.11%
5 withdrawal Rate - Minus 100 Basis Poinis 24,15 L11%
6 |Discount Aate - Plus 10 Basis Polnts 23.41 <. 90%
7 Distount Aate - Minws 100 Basis Points 24,500 1L18%
Table 14: Risk Exposure

Prowision of a defined benefit scheme poses certain risks as companies take on uncertain long term obligations 1o make future

pensian payments 35 follows;
1 |Liability Risks

Rigk I thare s a migmatch [n the duration
al the aisett relative to the Habilites. By
matching  duration  with the defined
banefit  Mabilitias, the company
I |Asset-Liability Mismatch Risk siccessfully able to neutrafire waluation
swings caused by  interest rate
movements. Henoe companies  ase
encosraged to  adopt  assef-llability
managemant.

Variationd in the fitcount rale wied o
1mm|:-ute the present value of the liabilites
i |Dscount Rate Risk iy seerm arnall, but in practice can have &
significant impact on the defined benefit
liakiligies.

Since price inflation and salary growth a
lirkad econgméically, they are combined
for disclosure purpases. Risng salaries will]
often result in higher futwre defined|
benafit payments resulting in & higher
presart value of fabilithe:  especially
unexpected salary Increases prwldut:j
managemeni’s discretion may lead
estimation umcertainties increasing this
rish.

I jFuture Salary Escalation and inflation Kisk -

1 |unfunded Man fisk
This represents unmanaged risk and & growing liability, There is an inherent risk here that the compary may default onf
3 it In adverse circumitanees, Funding the plan removes volatifisy from the halanca sheet and hether

nefi risk through increased retioms i
L G




PHC Bithur Kanpuer Highways Privape imited
CIN LM5201UP2020PTCI 29528
Motes to Financial Statements for the Period Ended March 31, 2025

Hote: 36 Employes Defined Benefit- Leave Encashment Provision

The discinsure s reguired by INDAS-19 "Employee Benefits” ang 25 under-
The Eability for Employes Leave Plan is deteremindad on acturial valuation using Projected unit credit method,

Table 1: Member Data Statistics
__[in lakhs}
5.Ho. Partlculars Far the year anding
31-03-2025 A1-03-2024
1 |Mumber of Employees 70 20
F honmal Redirement Age &0 &0
3 |Average Age [inyrs) 37.36 31.55
4 |Average Monthly Encashment Salary 13191 14,184
3 |[Total Leave balance [in days) 1,193.EF 17283
& |[Welghted Average duration of DED 186 145
Tabba 2: Banafits Valued
1 Typeof Flan Other Long Term Benefits
2 Mormal Retirement Age 60
3 Salary for calculation of leave encashment Basic
4  Salary for calculation of leave avallment Mt Lised
& Typeof leave walued Privilege Leavs
B Cag on leave acciemulation M staff Age>=S1 ywrs 300 days, else 120 days
¥ Encashment during employment Mot Allowed
£ Deys ina month [for caleulstions) 30 days
5 nNprmal Retirement Benefic 1730 % salary ¥ number of unused leave days
10  Death in Service Bensfit Eame & normal retirement
11 Leaving Service Senefit Same as normal retirement
12  Availment Pamem 20 of the leave balance
13 _ Encashment In service - Patiem 10% of the leave balance

Table 3: Significant Actuarial Assumptions

[T in lakhi
5.No, Partlculars For the year ending
31-03-2025 51-03-2024
1 |Discownt Rate B.55% 6.96%
2 |Expected Return on Plan Assets 0.0 0.00%
3 |Salary Escalation Rate (poa) .00 5.00%
4 |artrition Rate {p.a.) 25.00% 25.00%
5 IMnﬂillt'r Rate 10 LALMY 2012-14 | 100% LALM 2002-14
6 |Disability Rate No exglicit provision | No esplicit provision

. A




PMC Blithur Kanpur Highways Private Limited
CIN LMS20IUP2020PTCI29528
Maotes to Financial Statements for the Period Ended March 31, 2025

Valuation Disclosure Tables
Table 4: Change in Defined Benefit Obligation
(% In lakhs}
5.No. Far the year 1-04-2024 To 01-0s4-1023 To
31-03-1025 31-03-2024
1 |Defined benefit obligation at Beginming of year .80 g
Service cost -
B, CurFrent Service cost 1.7% o2y
b, Past service cost - vested 0.53
c. Past service oost - unvestad . :
i IntErest énpenses .06 -
4 |Cash flows .
a. Benefit payments from plan -
b, Benefit payments from employer E
g Actuarial Gaing and Losses
& Effect of changes in demographic assumptions - 7
b. Effect of changes In financal assumptions QL06 -
;. Effect of experience adjustments 2.50 -
& ransfer in fOut
n. Transfer In =
b. Transfer gut - -
7 |Defined benefit obligation at end of year 5.18 0.80
Bifureation of the present value of obligation at the end of the year [T in lakhs)
Partlculars 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
Current Obligations 133 0.20
Man-Current Dbligations 385 060
Total Ohiigation 5.1 0.5D
Table 5;: Change in Falr Value of Flan Assets
[ in lakhs)
S.Mo. For the year 03-04-2024 To 01-04-2023 Ta
31-03-2025 31-03-2024
1 1Flil' valua af plan assets at beginning of yoar -
2 [Other Adjustments - -
3 |Charges and Takes = .
4 |Expected return on plan assets - -
5 Cashllaws
a. Total employer's contribution
(i} Employer comtributhons

1} Employer direct benefit payments

L. Benefit payments from plan assets

| Benafit paymants from employer

6 |Actuarial Gaing and Losses on Plan Assets

a, Effect of changes in financial assumptions
(& Effect of experience adjustments

T |Transfer in fOut

a. Transfer In

b. Transfer out

Fair vplpeof plan assets at end of year

Lo

Acrual Return Qn Plan Assets



PHC Bithur Kanpur Highways Private Limited
CIN L4521 UP2020PTC129528
Motas to Financial Statements for the Poricd Ended March 31, 2025

Table 6: Amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet

(¥ In lakhs}
5.No. For the year 01-04-20%4 To 01-0:3-2023 To
31-03-2025 31-03-2023
1 Defined benefit obligation 218 .80
2 Fair value of plan assets . .
3 |Funded status - Deficlt! (Surplus) 5.18 0,80
4  |Actuarial {Gaina) and Losses - on Dbligations 1.56 -
& |Actuarial Gains and [Lossas) - on Plan Assets - -
6 |Met defined benefit - (Lisbiling]! Adzet 5.18 {0.80}|
Table 7: Net Perlodic benefit cost recognized in the Profit and Loss
(% im lalkhs)
SlNo, For the year 01-04-2024 To 01-04-2023 To
31-03-2035 31-03-2034
1 JCurrent Service Cost 1.76 0.27
2 [interest Expense - Dhifgation .06
31 |inierest {income] - Plan Assets - ]
4  |Past Service Cost - 0.53
5  |Actuarial {Gains) and Losses - on Dbligations .56 ‘
6 |Actuarial Gains and (Losses] - on Plan Assets - -
7 |Ket Periodic beneafit cost recognized inthe P &L 4.18 0.80
Table B: Balance Sheet Reconcilliation
[¥ in lakhs)
£.MNo, For the year 01-04-2024 To 01-04-2023 To
31-03-2025 31-03-2024
1 |mer defined benefit (liabiity) asset 81 beginning of year 080 :
1  |Exzpenseinthe P&l [4.38) [0LED)
3 |Emgloyer's Total Contribution -
4  |Nat tramsfar .
5 |Net defined benefit {Hability) asset as at end of year 5.18 {0.80)
Tabla 5: Expected Future Cathflows & Discontinuance |,I.]|;|-H.||‘g,I
{¥ in lakhs)
1 |Expected employer contributions Next year 1.76
S.No Matuarity of Profile Defined Benefit Obligation Expected Benefit
Payment
i 2016 1.42
| 2027 011
k| 1028 0.94
4 2029 .72
5 2030 0.55
[ 2031 - 2035 0.13
7 AR bayond 2035 0.42
ll-l_.r'



PN Bithur Kanpur Highways Private Limited
CiN UdS20AUPHOZOPTC1 29528
Notes to Finandal Staternents for the Period Ended March 31, 2025

Tahle 10: Major Catepories of Plan Asiets(as & % of total Plan Assers)

5.No. Asset Categosies For the year
311-03-2025 31-03-2024
1 Gowsrnment of lndia Securities 0005 0
2 |suate Government Securities 0.00% 0.00%
3 |High Cuality Cosparate Bonds €100 0.00%
4 |Eguity shares of [isted companies 0.00% (1R
5 |Property 0.00% 0.00%
6 |Special Deposit Schesme 0.00% 0,00
7 |Funds managed by Insurer 0.00% 0.D0%
E |Dthers (1o specify) 0.00% 0. Ol
] Total 009 0,005

Table 11; Sensitivity of Defined Benefit Obligation ([DBO) to key adsumplions

Thie firancial rasults are sensitve to the actuarial assumptions. The changes 1o the Defined Benefit Obligations for increase and
decrease from assumed salary escalation, withdrawal and discount rates are ghen below:

ll‘hlﬂ:h!!
SN Scenario Variation DED
1 Under Base Scenario 0.00% 5.18
2 |5alary Increase fate - Plus 100 Basis Points 2.53% 531
3 Salary Increase Rate - Minus 100 Bagis Points =2 A%, 505
4 |withdrawal Rate - Plus 100 Basls Points 0. 20% 519
5 Withdrawsl Rate - Minug 100 Basis Points 0.21% S.47
6 |Discount Rate P 300-Easis Poirts -LE1% 503
7 |piscount fiihus-iqg‘h:.u Poirits 3,00% 5,33
=y A
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Mtes to Finandal Statements for the Year Ended March 31, X025

Mate 37: Ratios The Following ane Analytical Ratios for the Year Ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

Year ended | h
:;. Particulars March 31, | March 31, | Vaslences : W 25%
035 2024 %)
S il e B 259 1m| zmes| BUERMERSCCERE
(Currant assats diaded by cument llabBties excuding curment maturities of long| ' ' cash equivalerts
S5 bormgwings)
2 |Debr-Equity Ratio (times)

{Long-berm borrowings, Shost-temm bu-rrnmrp ard current maturities of long u-rm
borrowings excliding unsecured bormawing taken snd outstanding from ultimate 344 .70 .95 Noi Appicable
halding compargfl.e. PNC mivatech Limited) diided by ol eguity imsluding
secured loan taken from witimate holding company

{Prafit before imberest, Tax and Esceptional Mem divided by interest Dpenses] 000 o ] R
toygether with principal repayment of Long-term Dorrowings)
i |Return on Eguity Ratio (%]
1.38 162 | -1h.2E b
{Proft sftor Tax divided by Total Equity, total squity ko indudes wunsecured loan| . MR
taken from wWitimate holding company Le. from PHC Infrateech Limited)
5 |beveniony Turnover fathe [thmes)
(Eost ud'Euuua n:dd dh.ll:lnd by Avorage Iru.rnrrhur,l_}
LA MA, MA. Mot Applicabi
Emufﬁnﬂdamld:ﬂnnnl’nﬂtﬂnlamuumad+ﬂmtm:thﬂr€unmumm .
ENOErSE
Dus io decrease in
& |Trade Receivable Turnover Batio {times] | o sl - Revenue & collectan
Revenue from operation divided by Average Trade Recsvable including servicoe : : from Trado
concessican recevakds) Recenabies.
7 _{Teade Payable Turnover Ratio {Hmas) - a sail rose | Duewdecreasem
{Purchase divided by Average Creditor) ' ' construction expensas
& [Net Capital Turmower Ratio {times) Due 1 decrease

{Revenue from oparation divided by working capital(working cagatal refers 1o el 057 563 | -S04 P

|Duw to decreas in other

173 14| m
NS
A
{EBITDA divided by Cepitsl employed (copital employed arwed after reducing] = 0 e L
. [Return an investme 0.30 0.33| -10.47 Mot Apphcabie
{Praft after Tax/Total Assets)
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